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Year 6 Grammar and Punctuation Revision Guide

	Grammatical and Punctuation Feature
	Definition
	Example

	Adjectives
	Adjectives are describing words; they pick out certain characteristics such as size or colour. They can be used to modify a noun or complement a verb.
	An adjective has three forms:

1. Adjective

2. Comparative (-er or more)

3. Superlative (-est or most).

big, bigger, biggest

stupid, more stupid, most stupid

	Adverbs
	An adverb is a word which modifies or

adds to the meaning of a verb, an adjective or another adverb.

Adverbs may be divided according to

their use, into the following classes:

TIME

PLACE

MANNER

DEGREE

FREQUENCY

QUESTIONING

The majority of adverbs are formed from corresponding adjectives by adding -ly, e.g. brave – bravely.
	TIME – before, now, then, already, soon, seldom.

Example: We have met before.

PLACE – here, there, everywhere and nowhere.

Example: They came here yesterday.

MANNER – badly, easily, slowly, well

Example: The tall boy won easily.

DEGREE – almost, much, only, quite, very, rather

Example: The old lady walked very slowly.

FREQUENCY - once, twice, sometimes

Example: Once, twice, three times a lady.

QUESTIONING- where, when, how

Example: When did you see him?

	Antonyms and Synonyms
	Antonym: a word opposite in meaning to another.

Synonym: a word that means the same as another word
	Example: Young - old,  Happy - sad

Example: beautiful- attractive, pretty

	Apostrophes
	An apostrophe shows: Either a place of omitted letters or contracted words, or possession – belonging to.
	OMISSION – Don’t worry.
CONTRACTION – It’s my party and I’ll cry if I want to.

POSSESSION – John’s ball.

	Article
	Articles can be found in two forms. They differentiate the importance attributed to a noun. ‘The’ bag instead of ‘a’ bag.

Definite: the 
Indefinite: the indefinite articles occur before a consonant (a bag) and a vowel (an apple).
	Definite: the

Indefinite: a / an

	Clauses
	A clause is either a complete sentence, or part of a sentence that could be used, with small changes, as a complete sentence. Some clauses embed additional information, but will not stand alone as a full sentence. These are called ‘embedded clauses’.
	Main clause: My sister is older than me.

Subordinate: My sister is older than me and she is very annoying.

Embedded clause: My sister, who is very annoying, is older than me.

	Colon
	Use the colon after a complete sentence to introduce a list of items when introductory words such as namely, for example, or that is do not appear.

Use a colon instead of a semicolon

between two sentences when the second sentence explains or illustrates the first sentence and no coordinating

conjunction is being used to connect the sentences. If only one sentence follows the colon, do not capitalize the first word of the new sentence. If two or more sentences follow the colon, capitalise the first word of each sentence following.
	Examples:

You may be required to bring many items: sleeping bags, pans, and warm clothing.

I want the following items: butter, sugar, and flour.

I want an assistant who can do the following: (1) input data, (2) write reports, and (3) complete tax forms.

Examples:

I enjoy reading: novels by Michael Morpurgo are among my favourites.

Garlic is used in Italian cooking: It greatly enhances the flavour

of pasta dishes. It also enhances the flavour of an aubergine.

	Commas
	Commas are used in lists (nouns, verbs, adjectives), to mark off embedded clauses; after a subordinate clause; with many connecting adverbs.
	List: It was an itsty, bitsy, teenie weenie, yellow, polka dot bikini.

Embedded clauses e.g. Jill, my boss, is 28 years old.

After a subordinate clause, e.g. Although it was cold, we didn’t wear coats.

With many connecting adverbs, e.g. Anyway, in the end I decided ot to go.

	Connective
	‘Connective’ is an informal name for words whose main function is to connect the ideas expressed in different clauses.
	It rained on sports day so we had to compete without worrying

about getting wet, but it was great fun because we got really muddy.

	Double Negative
	A negative statement containing two negative elements: 

A positive statement in which two negative elements are used to produce the positive force:
	· He didn’t say nothing.

· There is not nothing to worry about.

	Ellipses
	Punctuation mark used to show the omission of a word or phrase from a sentence that is understand from contextual cues. It can also be used to show the passage of time.
	Stop, in the name of …

	Homophones
	Two words are homophones if they have the same pronunciation but different spelling.
	You’re just too good to be true …

	Homonyms
	Two words that have the same spelling and pronunciation but different meaning. The meaning is contextual.
	Row

	Noun
	A noun is the name of a person, place, thing, or idea. Whatever exists, can be named, and that name is a noun.
	A proper noun, which names a specific person, place, or thing

(Thomas, Queen Marguerite, Middle East, Jerusalem, Malaysia,

Presbyterianism, God, Spanish, Buddhism, the Labour Party), is almost always capitalised. Collective nouns are composed of more than one individual person or items (jury, team, class, committee, herd).

	Paragraphing
	Paragraphs clarify the organisation of a piece of writing, making it easier to read and understand. In constructing paragraphs a writer assists the reader by ‘chunking’ related thoughts or ideas. In starting another paragraph the writer often signals a shift to something ‘new’ –for example, a different stage of the narrative, a different time or a different location.
	       Many people have strong feelings about fox hunting. Although many foxes are killed every year, people say it’s a sport. Some people are in favour and some are not. Here are some of the viewpoints.

       Farmers say that fox hunting is helping them. This is because less chickens and sheep are killed because there are less foxes. It also costs them a lot of money to buy new chickens or sheep. They have to pay for repairs of any damage the foxes have done.

	Parenthesis or brackets
	A word or phrase inserted as an explanation or afterthought into a passage which is grammatically complete without it, in writing usually marked off by brackets.
	When something is put ‘in parenthesis’ it is separated off from the main part of the sentence by a pair of brackets, commas, or dashes. This is usually because it contains information or ideas that

are not essential to an understanding of the sentence:

Nobles were seen choosing sides in the war by picking either a red rose (Lancaster) or a white rose (York) from bushes in the garden.

	Phrase
	A phrase is a small group of words that adds meaning to a word. A phrase is not a sentence because it is not a complete idea, and does not includes a verb.

	• so very sweet

• earnest in her desire

• very happy with his work

	Pluralisation -

regular
	The plural form of most nouns is created simply by adding the letter 's' to the end of the word .
	• bag - bags

• dog - dogs

• horse - horses

• minute – minutes



	
	Nouns that end in -ch, -x, -s, -sh add '-es' to the end of the word.
	• box - boxes

• boss - bosses

• bush - bushes

• church - churches

• gas – gases

	
	Most nouns ending in -o preceded by a consonant also form their plurals by adding '-es' .
	• potato - potatoes

• tomato - tomatoes

• volcano - volcanoes

	
	Nouns that end in a single 'z', add '-zes' to the end of the word.
	• quiz – quizzes

	
	Nouns ending in a consonant + y, drop the y and add '-ies'.
	• party - parties | lady – ladies

	
	Most nouns ending in 'is', drop the 'is' and add '-Es'.
	crisis - crises | hypothesis - hypotheses | oasis - oases.

	
	Most nouns ending in -f or -fe, drop the f and add 'ves'.

But this isn't a hard and fast rule:-
	• Calf - calves | half - halves | wolf - wolves

• Belief - beliefs (believes is a verb form)

• Brief - briefs

• Chef - chefs

• Proof - proofs

• Roof - roofs

• Cafe - cafes

• Safe - safes (saves is a verb form)



	Pluralisation -

irregular
	Most common nouns connected with

human beings seem to be irregular.
	child - children | person - people | man - men | woman – women



	
	Other irregular common nouns are:-
	foot - feet | goose - geese | mouse - mice | tooth – teeth



	
	Some nouns have identical plural and

singular forms.
	• aircraft - aircraft | fish - fish | headquarters -

headquarters | sheep - sheep | species – species



	Preposition
	Prepositions are words such as ‘in’ and ‘on’. They show you the relationship between two things. They often tell you where one thing is in relation to another.

The preposition is placed before a noun or pronoun.


	• About, above, across, after, against, along, amid, amidst, among, amongst, before, behind, below, beneath, beside, between, betwixt, beyond, by, down, during, except, for, from, in, into, near, of, off, on, over, round, since, though, till, to, towards, under, underneath, until, unto, up, upon, with, within, without.

	Prefix and Suffix
	Prefix: a word or some letters placed before another to adapt its meaning:

Suffix: a word or some letters placed after another word to adapt its meaning:


	Example: dis + obey

Example: play + ing

	Pronoun
	A pronoun is any word that replaces a noun in a sentence.

Use of ‘I’ and ‘me’: ‘I’ is the subject, whereas ‘me; is the object
	I, you, he, she, it, we, they

My, your, his etc

Mine

me, myself, I, my, mine, we, us our (s), ourselves

You, your(s), yourself, yourselves

He, him, his, himself, she, her(s), herself, it, its, itself, they, them,

their(s), themselves

Eg: Clare and I are going out.
      Danny thanked me.


	Question
	Questions are sentences which seek information.
	Yes - No questions: allow an affirmative and negative reply, often

just yes or no.

Wh - questions: allow a reply from a wide range of possibilities.

They begin with a question word, such as what, why, where or

how.

End with a question mark. ‘?’



	Semi colon
	A punctuation mark used to form a bond between two statements, typically when they are related to or contrast each other.
	I gnaw on old tyres. It strengthens my jaw so I’ll be better conditioned for bear combat.

BECOMES

I gnaw on old tyres; it strengthens my jaw so I’ll be better conditioned for bear combat.

	Speech marks

(inverted commas)
	You use inverted commas to show the exact words someone has spoken. If the speech comes at the start of a sentence it is followed by a comma, which goes inside the inverted commas. If the spoken words are at the end, put a comma before the speech begins.

	“I love you,” purred Leia.

Han replied, “I know.”

	Verbs
	Verbs are a necessary component of all sentences.
Verbs put stalled subjects into motion
	My grumpy old English teacher smiled at the plate of cold sandwiches.

My grumpy old English teacher = subject; smiled = verb.

The daredevil cockroach splashed into Sara's soup.

The daredevil cockroach = subject; splashed = verb.

Theo's overworked computer exploded in a spray of sparks.

Theo's overworked computer = subject; exploded = verb.


	Verb tenses
	Past tense

A past tense verb (a verb in the past tense) normally has a suffix -ed, names an event or state in the past.


	She waved to her mother and watched her as she disappeared into the fog.

	
	Present tense

A present-tense verb (a verb in the present tense) normally names a situation that is true now. It normally has either no suffix or -s (depending on the subject).


	The centre has extensive grounds.

He can swim.

When he arrives, he will unpack his bag.

	
	Future tense

There is no future tense ending in English; English expresses future time by a variety of other means.


	One of these - the use if will or shall - is often loosely referred to as the ‘future tense’. But this usage changes the meaning of the word ‘tense’ so that it no longer refers only to the use of verbs.

	
	A passive verb (a verb ‘in the passive

voice’ – contrast ‘active voice’) normally has a suffix ed, follows the verb be, and has its normal (‘active’) object and subject reversed so that the active object is used as the passive subject, and the active subject appears as an optional by phrase.


	A visit was arranged.

The school (s) arranged a visit (o).                Is written in the active.

A visit (s) was arranged by the school (o).    Is written in the passive.

	
	Infinitive To sneeze, to smash, to cry, to shriek, to jump, to dunk, to read, to eat, to slurp - 

All of these are infinitives.

An infinitive will almost always begin with ‘to’, followed by the simple form of the verb, like this:


	T o + v e r b = infinitive

Important Note: Because an infinitive is not a verb, you cannot add s, es, ed, or ing to the end. Ever!


